
 
 
 
Email: committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk 
Direct line: 01403 215465 
 

 

Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL 
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded)   Horsham.gov.uk   Chief Executive – Glen Chipp 

 
 

Extraordinary Council  
 

Thursday, 25th March, 2021 at 7.00 pm or immediately following Cabinet, 
whichever is the later 

          
via Remote Video Link 
 
To: All Members of the Council 
 
You are summoned to the meeting to transact the following business                                  Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 

Agenda 
 

   
Page No. 

 GUIDANCE ON COUNCIL PROCEDURE  

1.   Apologies for absence  

2.   Declarations of Members' Interests  

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members 
 

 

3.   Announcements  

 To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Council, the Leader, 
Members of the Cabinet or the Chief Executive 
 

 

4.   Recommendations from Cabinet 5 - 8 

 To receive the recommendations as approved at the meeting of Cabinet held on 
25 March and, if approved, to adopt the recommendations therein: 
 

(a) Improvement of Community Facilities in Denne Ward (the report of the 
Cabinet Member for Finance & Assets is online at: Adenda item 8 ) 

 
(b) Use of Additional Restrictions Grant for Projects to Assist Economic 

Recovery (the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance & Assets and 
Local Economy & Parking is online at: Agenda item 9 ) 

 
(c) Council Tax Support Scheme – Additional Discretionary Discounts (the 

report of the Cabinet Member for Finance & Assets in online at: 
Agenda item 10 ) 

 

 

5.   Urgent Business  

 To consider matters certified by the Chairman as urgent  
 

Public Document Pack

https://horsham.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1787
https://horsham.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1787
https://horsham.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=1787


This page is intentionally left blank



GUIDANCE ON EXTRAORDINARY COUNCIL PROCEDURE 
(Full details in Part 4a of the Council’s Constitution) 

Addressing the 
Council 

Members must address the meeting through the Chairman.  When the 
Chairman wishes to speak during a debate, any Member speaking at 
the time must stop.  The Chairman will decide whether he or she prefers 
Members to stand or sit when addressing the Council. 
 

Quorum Quorum is one quarter of the whole number of Members. If there is not a 
quorum present, the meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining 
business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chairman. If 
a date is not fixed, the remaining business will be considered at the next 
ordinary meeting. 
 

Declarations of 
Interest 
 

Members should state clearly in which item they have an interest and 
the nature of the interest (i.e. personal; personal & prejudicial; or 
pecuniary).  If in doubt, seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in 
advance of the meeting 
 

Announcements These should be brief and to the point and are for information only – no 
debate/decisions 
 

Rules of debate  The Chairman controls debate and normally follows these rules but 
Chairman’s interpretation, application or waiver is final. 
 
- No speeches until a proposal has been moved (mover may explain 

purpose) and seconded 
- Chairman may require motion to be written down and handed to 

him/her before it is discussed 
- Seconder may speak immediately after mover or later in the debate 
- Speeches must relate to the question under discussion or a personal 

explanation or a point of order (max 5 minutes) 
- A Member may not speak again except: 

o On an amendment 
o To move a further amendment if the motion has been 

amended since he/she last spoke 
o If first speech was on an amendment, to speak on the 

main issue (whether or not the amendment was carried) 
o In exercise of a right of reply.  Mover of motion at end of 

debate on original motion and any amendments (may not 
otherwise speak on amendment).  Mover of amendment 
has no right of reply. 

o On a point of order – must relate to an alleged breach of 
Council Procedure Rules or law.  Chairman must hear 
the point of order immediately.  The ruling of the 
Chairman on the matter will be final. 

o Personal explanation – relating to part of an earlier 
speech by the Member which may appear to have been 
misunderstood.  The Chairman’s ruling on the 
admissibility of the personal explanation will be final. 

- Amendments to motions must be to: 
o Refer the matter to an appropriate body/individual for 

(re)consideration 
o Leave out and/or insert or add others (as long as this 

does not negate the motion) 
- One amendment at a time to be moved, discussed and decided 

upon. 
- Any amended motion becomes the substantive motion to which 

further amendments may be moved. 

Page 3

Agenda Annex



- A Member may alter a motion that he/she has moved with the 
consent of the meeting and seconder (such consent to be signified 
without discussion). 

-  A Member may withdraw a motion that he/she has moved with the 
consent of the meeting and seconder (such consent to be signified 
without discussion). 

- The mover of a motion has the right of reply at the end of the debate 
on the motion (unamended or amended). 

 

Voting Any matter will be decided by a simple majority of those voting, by show 
of hands or if no dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting unless: 
- Two Members request a recorded vote  
- A recorded vote is required by law. 
Any Member may request their vote for, against or abstaining to be 
recorded in the minutes. 
In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman will have a second or 
casting vote (whether or not he or she has already voted on the issue). 
 

 

Page 4



 

COUNCIL 

25 March 2021 

CABINET RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Recommendations to Council made at the Cabinet meeting held on 25 March 2021 

 

 

The following recommendations, either as printed below or as amended at the Cabinet 

meeting, are recommended to Council: 

 

 

(a)  Improvement of Community Facilities in Denne Ward 

 

The report to Cabinet related to proposed works to refurbish and reconfigure St Peter’s Hall 

and the RAFA club, which are two buildings on the Needles Estate. The buildings have a 

number of shortcomings and are not fit for purpose in their current condition.    

 

The Council has successfully applied for a government Energy Efficiency Grant to reduce 

the carbon emissions of the buildings, which have poor energy efficiency.  These alterations 

are substantial and the grant is for £238,000.  Alongside these works, it is proposed to 

create a fit-for-purpose and efficient space which can be used by the local community.  The 

additional budget cost for remodelling the buildings is £262,000, bringing the total for all of 

the work to a budget of £500,000.  A condition of the grant is that the works commence prior 

to the 31st March 2021 and are completed by the 30th September 2021.    

 

It is intended to work with the local community and possible anchor organisations during the 

construction phase so that arrangements regarding future management of the building are in 

place on completion of the work.  The report to Cabinet gives details of the project and a 

recommendation to Council for the allocation of a budget of £500,000 for the works, of which 

£238,000 will be grant funded. 

 

RECOMMENDED TO CABINET 

 

i) To approve the project for the refurbishment of St Peter’s Hall and the RAFA club. 

 

TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL 

 

ii) That a budget of £500,000 for 2021/22 be approved for the project, of which 

£238,000 will be grant funded. 

 

REASON 

 

i) To upgrade poor quality community facilities in Denne Ward and to improve the 

energy efficiency of the buildings.  The proposals meet the Council policies to move 

towards net zero emissions by 2030 and to provide facilities to support health and 

wellbeing in the community. 

 

ii) Reasons for rejecting alternative courses of action are dealt with in the body of the 

report to Cabinet.     

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



   

 

(b) Use of Additional Restrictions Grant for Projects to Assist Economic Recovery 

 

 The report to Cabinet recommended that a budget be sought from Council to spend 

Additional Restrictions Grant money not needed for the Discretionary Business Grants 

scheme to use on projects to encourage the restart and success of businesses in Horsham 

District.    

 

The report seeks a delegation from Council to the Director of Corporate Resources, in 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance & Assets and Local Economy & Parking, 

the Chairman of Overview & Scrutiny and the Leader of the Council, to allocate funding to 

projects that will encourage this restart and success of our businesses. 

 

This item is submitted under Rule 4g.22 (special urgency) of the Constitution as it was not 

published on the Forward Plan with 28 days’ notice. This is because further information 

issued by the Government in March combined with an evaluation of claims under the 

discretionary scheme at the end of February changed our understanding of the scheme and 

the best way to use the money for the benefit of our local economy.  Speed is of the essence 

to get the most money possible to help our businesses as quickly as possible. 

 

RECOMMENDED TO CABINET 

 

TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL 

 

i) To set up a budget for projects to encourage the restart and success of businesses 

in Horsham District for a value that, combined with spend on Discretionary Grants, 

is equivalent to the total of the Additional Restrictions Grant and any subsequent 

additions the Government makes to it. 

 

ii) Delegate to the Director of Corporate Resources, in consultation the Cabinet Lead 

for Finance & Assets and Local Economy and Parking, the Chairman of Overview & 

Scrutiny and the Leader of the Council the allocation of this projects budget to 

projects proposed by officers of the County, District and Parish Councils when 

supported by an adequate business case and delivery plan that can be met before 

31 March 2022. 

 

iii) Approve the allocation of funds for the four projects outlined in paragraph 3.3.  

 

REASON 

 

i) A budget to spend this money on anything other than grants direct to businesses is 

needed for the Council to operate within its Constitution. 

 

ii) A delegation is needed to ensure we can identify and approve projects at speed to 

maximise the benefit our economy obtains from this Government grant. 

 

iii)  Council approving these projects is the quickest way to get funding into these 

projects because using the delegation would need further discussion. 

 

 

Page 6



   

 

 

(c) Council Tax Support Scheme – Additional Discretionary Discounts 

 

Local Authorities received, as part of the local government finance settlement, a Council Tax 

Support Grant to compensate them for income lost due to the rise in Council Tax Reduction 

scheme claimants throughout the pandemic and to give Councils an opportunity to award 

additional discounts.   

 

West Sussex County Council (WSCC) has offered HDC and other West Sussex districts and 

boroughs a share of its grant to replicate the additional COVID-related support given to 

working age Council Tax Reduction scheme claimants in 2020/21.  This was a further 

council tax discount of up to £150 per household.  This report proposes using HDC’s Council 

Tax Support grant for 2021/22 and any residual grant from 2020/21 alongside WSCC’s 

contribution to replicate this scheme.   

 

The report includes recommendations to Council to put in place the budget and delegations 

to enable officers to make these payments.   

 

This item is submitted under Rule 4g.22 (special urgency) of the Constitution as it was not 

published on the Forward Plan with 28 days’ notice.  This is because WSCC made this offer 

to support us in providing extra support to Council Tax Reduction scheme claimants and the 

need for urgency is to allow us to start putting through this support as soon as possible 

rather than waiting until July.  

 

RECOMMENDED TO CABINET 

 

i) Approve an additional discretionary discount of up to £150 per household for 
working age claimants in 2021/22. 

 

TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL 

 

i) To set up a budget for 2021/22 comprising the County Council’s share of payments 
and the remainder coming from a share of Horsham District Council’s Council Tax 
support grant and any residual hardship grant from 2020/21. 

 

ii) To delegate to the Director of Corporate Resources the finalisation of the exact 
sums involved during 2021/22 provided they do not exceed the £145,981 Horsham 
District Council grant and any carry forward from 2020/21. 

 

REASON 

 

i) County’s offer to part fund this support will help our most vulnerable working age 

families in a year when their income is likely to be adversely affected. 

 

ii) A budget is needed to allow these transactions to take place. 

 

iii)  The full cost of this scheme is not yet known because vulnerable customers in this 

group are likely to move in and out of work during the year.  This delegation will 

allow the Director to ensure customers get the help agreed against a varying budget 

level. 

Page 7



   

 

 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE ON COUNCIL PROCEDURE
	4 Recommendations from Cabinet

